
Wirral Schools Forum
Date: Tuesday, 30 November 2021
Time: 4.00 p.m.

Venue: Virtual Meeting through TEAMS

Contact Officer: Sue Ashley
Tel: 0151 666 4579
e-mail: SueAshley@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. PROTOCOL FOR VIRTUAL MEETING 

 This is a public meeting
 The meeting is recorded for minute taking purposes only
 Remain on mute unless requested to speak
 Raise ‘hand’ to ask a question, or ask a question in the chat 

section
 Use Chat to vote as not everyone has the hand symbol

2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

3. WIRRAL SCHOOLS' FORUM MINUTES 280921 (Pages 1 - 4)

4. MATTERS ARISING 

5. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 

6. EDSENTIAL UPDATE (Pages 5 - 8)

7. LIBRARY SERVICE UPDATE (Pages 9 - 10)

8. CONTINGENCY, SPECIAL STAFF COSTS AND INSURANCE 
(Pages 11 - 14)

9. EARLY YEARS WORKING GROUP UPDATE (Pages 15 - 18)

10. HIGH NEEDS WORKING GROUP 

Public Document Pack



Verbal Report

11. SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT AND BEHAVIOUR SUPPORT (Pages 19 - 
22)

12. BUDGET MONITORING UPDATE  2021-22 (Pages 23 - 28)

13. NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA UPDATE AND CONSULTATION 
2022-23 (Pages 29 - 38)

14. SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP UPDATE (Pages 39 - 42)

15. WORKPLAN (Pages 43 - 44)

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 



WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM

28th September 2021

MINUTES

Present: Adrian Whiteley (Chair)

Schools Group

Non-Schools Group

In Attendance:

 

Apologies:

1. Protocols of the Virtual meeting
 This is a public meeting
 The meeting is recorded for minute taking purposes only
 Remain on mute unless requested to speak
 Raise ‘hand’ to ask a question, or ask a question in the chat section
 Use Chat to vote as not everyone has the hand symbol.

2. Election of Chair 
Adrian Whitely was elected as Chair for the 2021-22 academic year.  The vice 
chair will be appointed at the November meeting.

L Ayling J McDonald
M Bellamy J Merry
J Bush M Morris
L Davidson S Ralph
G Fraser A Ramsden
S Goodwin C Scott
E Johnson J Weise
H Johnson R Wood
M Loftus

S Davies B McGregor
G Harris N Prance

A Ryecroft

S Ashley C Fenlon
J Backhouse K Frost
K Bird S Robinson
S Blevins C Thomson
Cllr Clements S White

None

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3. Minutes from the Meeting held on 29th June 2021
The minutes from the meeting were accepted as a true record.

4. Matters Arising
Meeting dates have changed as follows: -

 23rd November 2021 meeting has been moved to 30th November 2021.
 31st May 2022 meeting has moved to 14th June 2022.

5. Early Years Working Group Update 
Carol Fenlon updated Forum on the Early Years Working Group and service 
updates.  The main points are: -

 The DfE will provide more information to identify eligible 2 year olds to 
improve uptake

 There is not a sufficiency issue in Wirral for places.
 Early identification of SEND pupils in early year settings is putting 

pressure on the Inclusive Practice Fund.  This is being closely monitored.
 Recruitment and retention of staff in the Early Years Sector is an issue, 

and the Early Years Team are keen to work with secondary schools to 
promote Early Years as a career.  A link will be provided for schools to 
register their interest.

 
Resolved
Forum noted the report 

6. High Needs Places 
James Backhouse briefed the Forum on place change requests from Clare 
Mount Specialist Sports College and Elleray Park School.  They have taken in 
pupils over their Pupil admission numbers (PAN) for several years.  This report 
requests the increase of their PAN as follows: -

 Clare Mount Specialist Sports College from 226 to 249
 Elleray Park school from 151 to 187

These increased places have been budgeted for in this financial year and future 
years and are considered to be a substantive change to each schools’ PAN.

There will also be a wider piece of work around SEND sufficiency in Wirral, to 
take account of early identification in Early Years settings, with those pupils 
moving through the school system. Work has already started on this with a paper 
being presented to Forum later in the academic year.

Resolved
 Forum members agreed to increase Clare Mount Specialist Sports College 

places from 226 to 249, from September 2021
 Forum members agreed to increase Elleray Park School places from 151 

to 187, from September 2021
 Forum notes that the additional places will be included in the High Needs 

place change notification process in November 2021.
Page 2



7. Budget Monitoring 2021-22 Quarter 2 Update
Christine Thomson informed Forum that the final Early Years position for 2020-
21 has still not been confirmed by the DfE, so the Early Years underspend 
cannot yet be finalised.  The 2021-22 budget forecast position is an overspend of 
£1.7m mainly in the high needs area.   This has increased by £500k since the 
June 21 meeting.

Resolved
Forum noted the report and the forecast financial position of the Schools Budget 
for 2021-22 and the action to communicate the 2020-21 final Early Years 
allocation by e-mail.

8. Funding Allocations and Formula Consultation for 2022-23
Christine Thomson updated Forum on the provisional funding for 2022-23 and 
the National Funding Formula Funding (NFF) factor increases.
The Schools block has an overall increase of 2.57% and as Wirral have adopted 
the NFF the consultation on the formula will only ask for views on: -

 3 levels of MFG between the DfE parameters of +0.5% and +2%.
 Views on the usage of any funding left after the MFG has been applied.

As part of the consultation schools will receive indicative school level information 
concerning the impact of each MFG level.  It will run from 1st October to 22nd 
October 2021 and the outcome will be reported at the November Schools’ 
Forum.

The High Needs block has an increase of 7.43%, but this does not keep pace 
with the increase iin spend over the last 5 years.

The central services block will reduce by 1.64% due to a reduction in funding in 
respect of historic commitments.

Consideration needs to be given to modelling budgets for more than one year 
future years to provide some stability and guidance.  This would be based on 
assumptions as funding information is not provided for future years. 

Resolved
 Forum noted the report and the plan to report the outcome of the 

consultation at the November Meeting.
 Forum notes the change of the timing of the development plans for the 

falling rolls and growth fund. 

9. School Balances Update
Sue Ashley updated Forum on the balances and projections based on budget 
setting.  The projections at this time tend to be pessimistic, so the expectation is 
that they will improve as we move through the Financial Year.  Table 1 shows 
that the balances will continue to reduce if no action is taken, but the position is 
better than previously projected due to the increase in balances as at 31st March 

Page 3



2021.  School staff continue to monitor budgets closely to ensure they are robust 
with support from the LA.
  
Resolved
Forum noted the report 

10.Schools Forum Membership Update
Sue Ashley informed the group of the current Forum Membership and changes 
since the last meeting. There continues to be academy vacancies and further 
requests for members will be sent out. The PVI vacancy has been filled since the 
meeting. 

Resolved
Forum noted the report 

11.Workplan
The workplan was provided for information, and the date changes are for the 
next academic year are as follows, taking account of the changes noted in 
matters arising: -

Tuesday 30th November 2021 – (Virtual Meeting)
Tuesday 18th January 2022
Tuesday 14th June 2022

Venues for face to face meetings will be identified and brought to the next meeting 
for consideration.

A High Needs Working Group meeting will be held before the next Forum Meeting.

12.Any Other Business
There was no other business.

Page 4



WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM:   24 November 2021
REPORT: MANAGING DIRECTOR, EDSENTIAL COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
_____________________________________________________________________

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Edsential has fulfilled its mission as a Community Interest Company during this difficult year. We 
have constantly adapted to schools’ needs and safety requirements to be the sustainable, high 
quality partner that schools could rely on during these challenging times.

Please see our latest impact report: : https://edsential.com/impactreport

2.  BACKGROUND

Holiday Activity and Food programme coordination 2021

Edsential coordinated the 2021 HAF programme for Wirral, CWAC and Halton. 

Within Wirral the Spring and Summer programmes were successfully delivered within Covid 
compliant settings.

Spring 2021

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fedsential.com%2Fimpactreport&data=04%7C01%7CIan.McGrady%40edsential.co.uk%7Cdaee33548bfc41296e2a08d88805eebb%7C78c5b5829ce84c6c9d78186667d7e748%7C0%7C0%7C637408906361785357%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Xp%2FwUjdUAiFBM7%2F7D9bxjryfz3sY6L6HAUORZivWb%2Bs%3D&reserved=0


Summer 2021

The Winter HAF provision is currently recruiting settings for the Christmas period.

Service delivery 

Services returned to near normal in September with minor disruption in some areas due to absence 
and recruitment issues, however these were managed proactively and were no worse than those 
experienced in the general economy.

The residential centres are now fully open and we are currently building a woodland theatre on our 
site in Anglesey. This will be the only facility of its kind in the UK available for GCSE and A level 
courses supporting English, drama, dance and performing arts. We are also building an outdoor art 
setting to inspire art students and providing a flexible location to enable learning outside the 
classroom.

In the summer of 2022, we will be increasing the capacity of our Tattenhall centre by a further 40 
beds and opening a new Iron Age roundhouse to support learning.

COP26

We achieved a significant success with our commitment for supporting schools wishing to integrate 
climate change into the curriculum. Our COP26 Teacher Toolkit was selected for headline inclusion 
in the school resource pack on the official COP26 website. The toolkit was developed by our team 
with contributions from our national and international partners.
www.cop26.edsential.co.uk
https://together-for-our-planet.ukcop26.org/schools-pack-resources/

We also ran 3 free teacher CPD sessions to support the toolkit and the development of climate 
change content for primary and secondary curricula. 

Page 6

http://www.cop26.edsential.co.uk/
https://together-for-our-planet.ukcop26.org/schools-pack-resources/


Covid impact

The further covid lockdowns in 2021 had a significant impact on Edsential, however we are proud of 
the support we were able to offer Wirral schools during this difficult period. We continued to provide 
school meals, cleaning and governor support services throughout and phased in the remaining 
services as you told us you were ready for us to do so.

Covid disruption has continued into our current financial year, but we are confident that we will 
return to pre-Covid health in 2022/23. We have concluded a refinancing of the business with our 
shareholders and have agreed a £1.7m loan to help cover our losses, we will be repaying this over 
the next 15 years.

On behalf of our near 1000 staff I would like to thank everyone who supported us during this year.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the report is noted.

Ian.mcgrady@edsential.co.uk

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   30th November 2021

Schools’ Library Service Update
_____________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report updates the Forum on the recent changes to the Schools’ Library Service and the 
service plans for the future.

BUDGET
The Schools Library Service is a de-delegated service, mainly for Primary Schools. Funding from 
the Schools’ Forum provides £185,100 from maintained schools, the equivalent of £8.78 per 
primary school pupil.  Non-maintained schools can buy into the service at the same rate. A 
premium service is available for all subscribing schools both maintained and non- maintained and 
a transition year service is available for secondary schools. Additional income received supports 
the running costs of the overall service, in particular the SLS book fund for purchasing new books 
and resources for all schools.  
The make-up of the complete budget is shown below.

2021-22 Budget
Staffing £96,300
Other costs including book fund   £58,824
Support Services Recharge £29,976

TOTAL £185,100

Additional Income
Income Secondary Schools         £1,000 cr
Income Academies                             £3,998 cr 
Income Premium Service                      £4,000 cr
Income Special Schools     £1,102 cr

TOTAL     £10,100 cr

2021-22 PRIORITIES 
- Like all services, Covid-19 and the subsequent lockdowns have meant a change to the way 

we run our service. We stayed open throughout the pandemic as a support for teachers and 
vulnerable children and termly deliveries to schools have continued as normal this year.

- Our offer still includes a click and collect service which teachers have found very helpful.
- We are hoping to reopen the SLS library to teachers as soon as possible but we are following 

council guidelines and protocols to ensure this is done safely.
- We knew that some children hadn’t had access to libraries during the lockdowns and that 

literacy levels had suffered so we decided to include a ‘reading for pleasure’ option in our 
21/22 offer which has been a success with over 90% of our schools subscribing. This has 
been made possible due to last year’s increase from £7.78 per pupil to £8.78 so we thank you, 
Schools’ Forum.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



- We also noticed a need for PE equipment in some schools so we are now piloting an offer of 
PE resources for loan which looks as if it will prove very popular. Chess set loans introduced 
last year are being very well used, along with our other non-book resources including Story 
Boxes, Microbits and Artefact boxes.

- We will continue to maintain our current level of book, artefact loans and audio-visual resource 
provision for schools as a standard service.

- We will continue to offer our professional advice as librarians for the remodelling of school 
libraries.

- We will continue to ensure our book stock, resources and offers to all schools remain relevant 
and up to date.

- Our Year 7 transition scheme continues at Ridgeway and St John Plessington and we hope to 
encourage other secondary schools to buy in. It is a cost-effective service for both SLS and 
the subscribing secondary schools and we have had very positive feedback. 

- We hope to be part of the start of a new national SLS-UK offer. This will mean schools in all 
areas will have access to a Schools’ Library Service, regardless of whether their authority has 
one. This will hopefully mean more schools joining Wirral SLS from a wider catchment area. 
Liverpool schools don’t have access to a Schools’ Library Service so there is a real potential 
for service growth

- We would like to extend an invitation to all Councillors, interested Council Officers and School 
Governors to visit SLS (when it is safe to do so) to see what we do and how much our service 
has to offer. 

- We have moved within the Council structure back to Neighbourhoods and Libraries and we 
would like to thank Peter Aspinall for his warm welcome back.

STAFFING
There are currently 2 ¾ FTE members of staff:

2 * 0.5    Schools’ Librarian -   job share
1 * 0.75 Assistant Schools’ Librarian - ¾ post
1 * Library Manager- ft post

Additional temporary staff members are employed three times a year to help 
facilitate the collection and delivery of resources to and from schools at the beginning and end of 
each term.

The service is based at: 
Joseph Paxton Campus
157 Park Rd North,
Claughton
CH41 0DD
0151 666 3200

Please see our entry in the Wirral Traded Services Brochure for more information on the service 
we offer

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Forum notes the report

Page 10



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM  30th NOVEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND EDUCATION

DE-DELEGATED BUDGETS - CONTINGENCY, SPECIAL STAFF, AND INSURANCE 
COSTS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the current provision for contingency, 
special staff, and insurance costs that are funded by de-delegated budget from 
Wirral’s maintained primary and secondary schools. 

2.0 SCHOOL SPECIFIC CONTINGENCIES

2.1 This is a de-delegated budget, and is used for exceptional and unforeseen costs, 
which would be unreasonable to expect the schools and governing bodies to bear.  

2.2 Special schools access these services on a buy-back basis.

2.2 This budget is used to meet adjustments for Business Rates, where actual 
charges are greater than those estimated when setting the budget. Other costs 
met from this budget vary each year, but in the past have included:
 Support for schools in Key Stage 1 where a larger than usual reception class 

(above the published admission numbers) requires additional staff;
 In exceptional cases deficits arising from closing schools;
 Support for managed moves

2.3 At January 2021 Schools Forum it was agreed to de-delegate this budget for 
primary and secondary maintained schools at £1.13 and £2.15 per pupil, 
respectively. 

2.4 The contingency budget for 2021-22 is as follows:

Budget
    £

Primary Schools   23,850
Secondary Schools     7,250  
Gross budget   31,100

3.0 SPECIAL STAFF COSTS

  3.1 This de-delegated budget makes provision for staff maternity, paternity and trade 
union facility time for both teaching and non-teaching staff. It may also in certain 
circumstances meet additional costs arising from staff suspensions.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



3.2 Maternity costs make up approximately 90% of the overall spend. While a member 
of staff is on maternity their costs are held centrally, while the school meets the 
cost of any required supply cover. Costs can vary greatly from year to year 
depending on the number of maternity cases, and the salary costs of those staff. 

3.3 This budget also meets paternity costs, by reimbursing the cost of supply cover for 
the statutory 2 weeks of paternity leave allowed. 

3.4 The Trade Union Facilities time budget has regard to guidance which confirms that 
representatives are entitled to reasonable paid time off during working hours to 
undertake Trade Union duties and relevant training. Wirral like many LA’s has a 
local facility agreement in place. The budget for facility time also includes non-
teacher representation. 

3.5 Special Schools access these services on a buyback basis and there is a separate 
SLA for Academy schools.

  3.6 Then financial position for 2020-21 was as follows:

 Budget  Cost
      £    £

Maternity/Paternity 607,373 632,919
Trade Union Facilities   87,128 115,571
Insurance & Recharges     6,900     6,900
Total 701,401 755,390

3.7 At January 2021 Schools Forum it was agreed to de-delegate this budget for 
primary and secondary maintained schools at £27.51 (staff £23.98 + TU £3.53) 
and £30.90 (staff £30.90 + TU £3.53), per pupil respectively. 

3.8 The budget for special staff costs in 2021-22 is as follows:

 Budget
         £

Maternity, Paternity & Other Staff Costs 602,738
Trade Union Facilities   86,362
Insurance & Recharges     6,900
Total budget 696,000

4.0 INSURANCE

4.1 This budget covers the cost of governors’ liability insurance for Voluntary Aided 
schools. A VA school’s governing body should insure 10% of the replacement 
cost of the whole of the school premises. Where a VA school makes a claim 
under the policy, the Department for Education has the power (but not an 
obligation) to pay capital grant, usually at 90% of relevant expenditure, with 
governing bodies being responsible for the other 10%.

4.2 For several years Wirral schools have de-delegated budget to meet the cost of 
this insurance. Since 2017-18 only Primary schools have de-delegated, all 
secondary VA schools now having converted to Academy status. 

Page 12



4.3 VA schools purchase the insurance and can then claim the cost back from the 
Authority. Spend in recent years from this budget is as follows:

Spend
    £

2017-18 15,500
2018-19 11,000
2019-20 17,286
2020-21 10,931

4.4 It should be noted that even though the governing body need only insure 10% of 
its premises liabilities, it is essential that proper security measures are taken to 
protect the premises and appropriate risk management advice to minimise 
losses is accessed. 

4.5      At January 2021 Schools Forum it was agreed to de-delegate this budget for
primary schools at £1.19 per pupil and this has resulted in a budget for 2021-22 
of £25,100.

5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 That the Forum notes the report.

Simone White
Director for Children, Families and Education

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM  30th November 2021
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND 
EDUCATION SERVICES
EARLY YEARS WORKING GROUP UPDATE 

1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to update Wirral’s School Forum on both discussions at 
the recent Early Years working group, 5th November 2021, and service updates.

2.0   Take up of Universal 2, 3 + 4 early years free entitlements & 30 hours 
extended (EYFE)
2.1   The Autumn take up is still to be confirmed from the headcount and census, 
however indicative %’s for 2-year-olds, particularly, is showing an increase as below; 

Summer 21 take up 80%
Autumn 21 Take up 85% 

2.2   Whilst it had been expected that with the end of the Furlough scheme eligibility 
for 2-year placements may increase, it is acknowledged it has only just ended and 
more time is needed to assess the impact.  

2.3   In relation to general take up of funded placements, there continues to be 
steady growth as parents’ confidence for their child attending settings increased, 
although it is recognised that the spikes in recent weeks, of Covid cases, has a 
knock-on effect on new starters and sustaining attendances.

2.4   What has been positive this term is a sharp increase on the number of data 
returns from settings for attendance, from 44% to 71%, which will give a better 
understanding of attendance behaviours.  

2.5   Overall, there remains to be sufficient places for demand.  The areas of the 
sector who has had most impact of falling numbers due to parents changing their 
childcare arrangements has been childminders and out of school provision.  

  
3.0   Early Years Portage Team
3.1   Wirral has had a Portage Service in operation for over 30 years now, which is 
funded through the High Needs block of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  During 
recent years the service has experienced several periods of change, with the most 
significant being a reduction on the FTE staff structure, going from 8 FTE to 2.7 FTE 
around 2014-16.

3.2   As a result the service has had to; reduce the amount of time working with 
families in their home; reduce the number of sessions within a package of care for 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



families and cease going into early years settings to role model Portage principles to 
practitioners, which enables better transitional support for children with SEND.    

3.3   Portage is a strength-based intervention which celebrates diversity and 
empowers inclusion for all.   Parents who have been involved with the Portage team 
share how they felt listened to, had their wishes respected and have an improved   
confidence base from where they can be their child’s champion. 

3.4   Portage is key to early identification as the service offers support from birth and 
generally until a child is aged 3 and transitions into early education.  Ideally children 
with complex SEND would be further supported on first entry to a setting where it is 
likely a child will progress onto an Education and Health Care Plan (EHCP) and 
Portage could work closely with the child’s keywork and contribute to the evidence 
required for assessment.  

3.5   As the number of children being identified earlier increases, (7.7% qtr1 2020 - 
10.3% qtr1 2021) the demand for Portage interventions has also significantly 
increased.  As a result, there is an ongoing waiting list, of which at any one time can 
have 30+ children awaiting allocation.  It is expected that an FTE Portage worker 
would have a caseload of around 12 children.  What is known is, caseloads 
particularly through the Covid19 pandemic have become more complex as families 
struggle to deal with the trauma of a pandemic and at same time come to terms with 
their child’s SEND needs.  This has resulted in more time needed to be with families, 
holding onto caseloads for longer and increased requests for EHCP evidence.

3.6   There will, therefore, be a review of the current arrangements to identify an 
alternative basis for delivery of the service to meet demand.

4.0   Inclusive Practice Fund (IPF)
4.1   There continues to be pressure on the IPF budget, as reported previously.  With 
continued high volume of referrals from identification of emerging needs requiring the 
panel to sit more frequently.  Since September, there have been 52 referrals and the 
panel will sit again in December.  This takes the number of children currently being 
supported by IPF to around 160+, whereas the £450k allocated budget from the 
early years block can only accommodate 150.  There are at least 2 more panels 
within this financial year.

4.2   Subsequently should the volume of referrals continue at these rates it is 
projected the £140k overspend reported in September’s early years school forum 
report could rise to around £450k overspend.  Taking the full amount within this 
financial year of funding support for children with an identified need in early years to 
near £900k, doubling the allocated amount.  

Page 16



4.3   It is known this rise is due to a regression of development through the 
pandemic, low levels of communication and personal and emotional developments 
skills, limited access to community activity which can boost developments, such as 
Children Centres and voluntary groups and a lower % of children having had their 
health developmental checks, for varied reasons.

4.4   It is suggested that a review of potential funding sources and the criteria for 
awards of IPF should take place to identify ways to mitigate costs. The latter to take 
place in Spring 2022 and in partnership, by way of consultation, with parents and 
early years providers.

4.5   Also to work with parents, partners, and organisations on the continued 
remobilisation and accessibility of activities that will boost the key areas of child 
development, as aforementioned, in their communities.

5.0   RECOMMENDATIONS
5.1   High Needs working group discuss early years funding for children with 
higher level or complex needs. 
5.2   Forum to note the report.

Simone White – Director of Children, Families and Education

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – Date 30th November 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND EDUCATION

Title : De-delegated budget for school improvement support and behaviour 

support update

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Forum on the services delivered 
from the Behaviour Support and School Improvement functions funded by de-
delegated school budgets.

1.2   For the financial year the following breakdown highlights the funds that are allocated 
to the de-delegated budgets for schools’ improvement and behaviour support.

5/12ths                 
De-delegated

7/12ths              
Buy-back Total

School Improvement 62,300 87,300 149,600
Behaviour Support 58,000 81,300 139,300

Primary Secondary Total
School Improvement 122,909 26,691 149,600
Behaviour Support 107,488 31,812 139,300

Primary Secondary
School Improvement £5.83 per NOR £7.92 per NOR
Behaviour Support £17.35 per SEN £29.04 per SEN

1.3  The local authority has a responsibility to have regard to the Schools Causing 
Concern statutory guidance. This guidance is clear, local authorities must exercise 
its education functions with a view to promoting high standards.

1.4   The local authority has launched a new school improvement strategy, this was 
approved by the Children’s, Families and Education committee in September 2021, the 
strategy is attached as appendix 1.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1   The local authority has several statutory duties and must exercise its function in 
these areas. In relation to oversight of Standard Assessment Tests. 

2.1.1 Moderating of the teacher assessments carried out at the end of key stage 1 and 2 
by schools in at least 25% of maintained schools each school year and ensure that 
every school will be subject to moderation at least once every four years.

2.1.2 Appointing a person to complete the assessment moderations who has recent 

Page 19

Agenda Item 11



experience of provision of the National Curriculum in primary schools. 

2.1.3 Monitor the administration of the phonics screening check in accordance with Key 
stage 2 tests and phonics screening check.

2.2  The local authority has responsibility to support higher standards of education 
across the school it maintains. In addition, the local authority should work in partnership 
with the Regional Schools Commissioner to share any concerns they may have in 
relation to a local academy. To support this the local authority has produced a new 
school improvement strategy that will be implemented over the next three years. The 
School Improvement Strategy is appendix 1.

2.3  The Strategy sets out a vision for school improvement to: raise aspirations and 
improve outcomes for all children in Wirral. It aligned to the proposed Wirral Plan 2026 
and the priority to secure brighter futures for all regardless of their background. It 
outlines activity which is structured around the following themes: 

 Leadership and governance: Effective school leadership is critical in improving 
educational outcomes, promoting high expectations and meeting the rigorous 
demands of Ofsted and the Department for Education. The School Improvement 
Strategy set out plans to empower headteachers, governors and senior leaders to 
build leadership capacity, secure better teaching and learning and deliver whole-
school improvement. 

 High Support, High Challenge: The local authority has a role to monitor, 
challenge and, where necessary, intervene in maintained schools. The Strategy 
sets out a plan to build on the current banding process and develop a prioritisation 
model which allows for school improvement support to be coordinated 
appropriately. This will also include setting out a transparent Schools Causing 
Concern policy, where early-stage monitoring and challenge do not result in rapid 
improvement. 

 Self-improving school system: Strong governance and accountability is essential 
to success of an effective self-improving system and effective collaboration and 
partnerships provide the foundations for this. The Strategy outlines how the local 
authority will work with key stakeholders to develop a robust self-improving system 
which enables schools to hold each other to account for progress and performance 
and quality assurance measures which assess the impact of partnership activity. 

 Learning and innovation: There is huge value in using evidence-based learning to 
inform professional practice and organisational decision-making. Research and 
evidence have a significant role to play in informing practice in schools and in 
school improvement. The Strategy outlines plans to ensure that our future schools 
and education leaders utilise effective improvement strategies based on evidence-
based research whilst also having opportunity to explore innovative solutions to 
complex problems. 

 School Improvement Wirral: The COVID-19 pandemic impacted on the provision 
of a dedicated school improvement function to perform effectively. Transitioning out 
of the pandemic will enable resources to increase capacity in the School 
Improvement Team, appointing permanent school advisors to enable the local 
authority to fulfil its duties in monitoring performance and brokering school 
improvement provision.

Page 20



2.4   To support the School Improvement Strategy the de-delegated budgets articulated 
at the start of the report will be used in a more strategic way to support our 
maintained schools. The following CPD/quality assurance/commissioned offers 
have been sourced to support our maintained schools with the use of these funds.

2.4.1 A key cornerstone of the school improvement strategy is the support of a school 
assurance professionals to quality assure the current position of our maintained 
schools. This will be facilitated by education professional with the relevant 
experience to articulate with schools leaders and governors areas each school 
should be developing during the current academic year. This offer will be free for 
all maintained schools, academies can access this support, but this will have a cost 
associated.

2.4.2 To support school improvement on Wirral recovering from COVID-19 pandemic, 
the local authority has worked with a education provider to develop a “Leading with 
Strength” program that will work with schools over the next two years. The program 
will offer a number of key note training sessions with follow-up smaller group 
sessions to support both school leaders and governors in developing a schools 
approach in the following areas; COVID-19 recovery; staff wellbeing; curriculum 
development; behaviour & inclusion and SEND. The program will be free for all 
maintained schools, the offer is available for academies, but they will have to cover 
the costs associated. The first session in booked for the beginning of December.

2.4.3 A number of key areas of focus have been identified as key areas of focus and the 
need for additional CPD in these areas, namely; early years education; curriculum 
development and literacy across the curriculum. To support these areas, the local 
authority has commissioned support from a range of education specialist that will 
offer bespoke CPD in these areas. The offer of this support will be free for 
maintained schools and the focus of this support will be for maintained schools 
initially. Academies who are interested in the support should contact the Head of 
School Effectiveness.

2.4.4 In addition, further CPD support is currently being developed, through engagement 
with local leaders to identify the support that schools require as the education 
system moves to a more normal footing post COVID-19. One of the key areas of 
development will be the support offered to maintained schools in relation to 
governance, with an offer high quality training and support, with the aim of making 
sure local governing bodies have the relevant knowledge and expertise to support 
their schools from a strategic perspective.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Endorse the developments in relation to the strategic use of de-delegated 
budgets to support school improvement and behaviour support.

3.2 Receive a further update in relation to de-delegated budgets in six months.

Page 21



James Backhouse 
Assistant Director of Education 

Simone White
Director for Children, Families and Education

Page 22



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th NOVEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND EDUCATION

SCHOOLS BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT 2020-21 UPDATE AND 2021-22 BUDGET 
VARIATIONS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the year end position for the 
2020-21 schools budget and an overview of the anticipated variations for the 
current year 2021-22 schools budget.

2.0 2020-21 SCHOOLS BUDGET

2.1 The 2020-21 outturn report identified that, compared to grant, Early Years activity 
was underspent by £290.4k. It was agreed by Forum that, subject to final 
confirmation of the 2020-21 Early Years grant allocation by Education and Skills 
Funding Agency (ESFA), the underspend would be ring-fenced for use on Early 
Years activity in future years. Final confirmation of the 2020-21 grant allocation 
was received on Friday 19 November and this has identified the final grant for 
2020-21 at £21,026,986. 

2.2 The original allocation for 2020-21 was £21,354,340 thus the final allocation 
reflects a reduction of £327,354. At the end of the financial year, an assessment 
was made of the grant due for 2020-21 based on census data and this identified a 
potential reduction of £318,294 and which was reflected in the Schools accounts. 
Based on this year-end assessment, the value of the unspent grant to be carried 
forward and ring-fenced for Early Years activity was £290.4k. This final grant 
income confirmation reduces this ring-fenced underspend to £281.4k and this is 
made up of £45.4k for Disability Access Fund and £236.0k for other activities. 

3.0 2021-22 SCHOOLS BUDGET

3.1 Overall the schools budget is forecast to overspend by £3.002m which is mainly 
due to pressure in the High Needs Block. This reflects an increase in the 
overspend of £1.305m from the position reported at the September 2021 meeting. 
The table below summarises the outturn position by funding block and a more 
detailed analysis is attached in Appendix 1.

Page 23

Agenda Item 12



2021-22                        
Budget

2021-22                       
Forecast

2021-22 
Variation 

Under/-Over 
spend

£ £ £
Schools Block 117,101,552 117,101,552 0
Schools Block de-delegated 1,559,500 1,539,786 19,714
Central School Services Block 3,612,933 3,556,730 56,203
High Needs 43,874,132 46,181,345 -2,307,213
Early Years 21,644,246 22,295,368 -651,122
DSG Income -189,015,997 -188,896,163 -119,834
Total before contribution to/-from Reserve -1,223,634 1,778,618 -3,002,252 
Movement in DSG Reserve 2,683,134 -319,118 3,002,252
Total after contribution to/-from Reserve 1,459,500 1,459,500 0 

Cumulative reserve balance b/fwd from 2020-21 -1,678,989 
In-year contribution to/-use of reserve -319,118 
Cumulative reserve balance c/fwd to 2022-23 -1,998,107 

3.2 The 2020-21 financial year closed with a Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) reserve 
cumulative deficit position of £1.679. It had been expected that the 2021-22 in-
year position would deliver a positive contribution to the reserve of £2.683m from 
the High Needs Block thus generating a cumulative surplus reserve balance of 
around £1m. The current forecast outturn position means that a use of reserve of 
£0.319m will be needed rather than a contribution to reserve thus increasing the 
cumulative deficit from £1.679m to £1.998m at the end of 2021-22. 

4.0 2021-22 BUDGET
   

4.1 There have been no changes to the budget since the position reported at the 
September 2021 meeting.

5.0 2021-22 FORECAST BUDGET VARIATIONS
The budget variations that make up the £3.322m overspend are identified in the 
table attached in Appendix 1. The reasons for the variations as well as comments 
on specific budget areas are given below.

5.1 Special Schools £225k favourable
The budget includes additional places to address demand, and it is expected that 
these will be fully allocated either on a permanent or temporary basis during the 
financial year. Although fully allocated, the part-year effect of some place 
allocations is expected to deliver an underspend on this budget. In addition, the 
use of the high needs contingency budget to fund selected temporary places has 
eased pressure on this budget. 

5.2 Early Years £188k adverse
The forecast position assumes that the take-up of 2- and 3–4-year-old provision 
will be in line with planned activity. The position will be monitored during the year 
as more information becomes available. The in-year overspend relates to the 
Disability Access Fund ring-fenced funding which was brought forward from 2019-
20 and which has been spent in 2021-22. The overspend is off set using the DSG 
reserve. The forecast position does not include use of the proposed overall ring-

Page 24



fenced funding of £290k brought forward from 2020-21 as this is still subject to 
confirmation.

5.3 Early Years Central School Costs £0 – on budget
An underspend position of £20k had been reported at the September meeting but 
a re-assessment of the activity has identified that the full budget will be needed.

5.4 Admissions - £35k favourable
The budget includes resources to meet fluctuations in demand. It is not expected 
that these resources will be fully utilised in year and this has generated a forecast 
underspend of £35k. 

5.5 Other Central School Costs - £22k favourable
The following underspends have been identified:
 School redundancy costs – historic commitments relating to closed schools 

that are reducing over time thus delivering an underspend (£6.0k)
 Schools Forum – underspend mainly due to the continuation of on-line 

meetings (£8.0k)
 Contingency – balance of central school block funding (7.6k)

5.6 Behaviour Support - £11k favourable
The underspend relates to staff cost savings and contributions received from 
academy schools on a buy-back basis.

5.7 Special Education Needs - Additional resources £2.1m adverse
Demand on this budget continues to grow in line with the requests for EHCP 
assessments. Requests increased by around 112 in the period to September 
compared to last year and it is expected that demand will continue to rise for the 
remainder of the year. Not all requests will result in a financial outcome, but it is 
expected that a significant portion will result in Units of Resource being awarded 
and this will generate a budget pressure of £832k for Primary school pupils, £560k 
for Secondary school pupils and £208k for out of borough placements. 

In addition, demand for support for Early Years has generated an overspend of   
£463k against the Inclusive Practice budget.

The position will be monitored closely, and the forecast position re-assessed as 
more up-to-date information becomes available.

5.8    Special Education Needs – Top Ups £291k adverse
The top-ups budget is forecast to overspend by £291k and this reflects an 
increase in costs of £387k since the position reported in September. The table 
below analyses the forecast position across the various activities that form the 
overall Top-Ups budget.

Page 25



Budget                       
£

Forecast                           
£

Variation 
Under/-Over 

spend                      
£

Top-Ups for Maintained Special Schools 8,773,746 9,137,010 -363,264
Top-Ups for Resourced Provision 1,070,200 1,046,367 23,833
Alternative Provision 1,318,200 1,269,334 48,866
FE & 6th Form Top-Ups 2,050,000 2,050,000 0
Additional Nursing Support 160,000 160,000 0
Exceptional Needs 1,350,000 1,350,000 0
Total 14,722,146 15,012,711 -290,565

The overspend of £363k for maintained Special Schools relates mainly to the ratio 
of pupils in each of the top-up bandings. The number of pupil awards at the mid to 
higher rate bandings is greater than expected. In addition, the awards associated 
with additional temporary placements is greater than expected. 

The underspend of £24k for the resourced provision relates mainly to the
 re-evaluation of the mix of top-up bandings and places.

The underspend of £49k for the alternative provision relates to a change in pupil 
activity.

5.9 High Needs Contingency - £136k adverse
The overspend is due to the need to respond to the demand for additional special 
school places. Additional provision has been generated in the form of temporary 
place funding and temporary accommodation.

5.10 Independent Special Schools £801k – adverse
A balanced position had been reported in September but an increase in demand 
has generated a forecast overspend of £801k. 15 additional pupils have been 
identified since the financial position was reported to Forum in September.

5.11 Support for SEN £275k - favourable
There are several activities and services that are delivered by this budget 
including Hearing and Vision, Vulnerable Children and Physical/Medical 
Impairment. The forecast underspend of £275k relates mainly to staff cost savings 
due to vacancies. 

5.12 Dedicated Schools Grant - £120k adverse
Of the £120k adverse variance, £114k relates to the outcome of the Summer 
2021 import/export process. The Import/Export process is a way of re-distributing 
the High Needs funding where pupils residing in one LA attend a school at 
another LA. 

The remaining £6k relates to the change to the allocation for an alternative 
provision out of borough placement. 

6.0 UPDATE ON SPECIFIC RESERVES 

6.1    The opening reserves position for 2021-22 reflects a cumulative deficit position of
         £1.679m. 

Page 26



  6.2 The 2021-22 budget includes a planned surplus of £2,683k in the High Needs 
Block that was to be carried forward into the reserve at the end of the financial 
year. Due to the forecast overspend of £3,147k, the reserve will need to contribute 
£319k to balance the in-year position thus increasing the closing deficit position to 
£1,998k.

6.3 The table provides an analysis of the opening and closing reserve balance.

Opening 
Balance 

£000

In-year 
movement 

in/-out                          
£000

Closing                              
£000

-2,138.4 -131.3 -2,269.7 

223.5 -187.7 35.8 
236.0 236.0 

-1,678.9 -319.1 -1,998.0 
  Early Years - Unspent 2020-21 grant
Net surplus/-deficit

General reserve
Ring-fenced reserves
  Early Years - Disability Access Fund

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That the Forum notes the report and the forecast financial position of the Schools 
Budget for 2021-22.

7.2 That the Forum notes the confirmation of the 2020-21 Early Years grant funding 
and thus the ring-fenced underspend of £281.4k that is carried forward into 2021-
22.

Simone White

Director of Children, Families and Education

Page 27



Appendix 1 - Budget Variations 2021-22

Individual Schools Budget
Primary 96,052,551 96,052,551 0
Secondary 20,896,065 20,896,065 0
Special 12,590,592 12,365,823 224,769
Wirral Hospitals School 1,407,180 1,407,180 0
SEN Bases 969,731 969,731 0
Sixth Form/Further Education 36,000 36,000 0
Early Years 20,675,546 20,863,260 -187,714 
Growth and Falling Rolls Fund 152,936 152,936 0
Individual Schools Budget Total 152,780,601 152,743,545 37,056

Central School Costs
Early Years Costs 518,700 518,700 0
Admissions 379,982 345,378 34,604
School Redundancy Costs 81,000 75,000 6,000
Licenses and subscriptions 243,751 243,751 -0 
Schools Forum 10,600 2,600 8,000
Contingency 7,600 0 7,600
Contribution to combined budgets 700,500 700,500 0
PFI Affordability Gap 1,459,500 1,459,500 0
Retained duties Central (ex-ESG) 730,000 730,000 0

Costs delegated to/de-delegated from schools
Library Service 185,100 185,100 0
Insurances 25,100 16,366 8,734
School Specific contingencies 31,100 31,100 0
Special Staff Costs 696,000 696,000 -0 
Behaviour Support 58,000 47,020 10,980
School Improvement 62,300 62,300 0
Retained duties de-delegated (ex-ESG) 501,900 501,900 0

High Needs Pupils
Additional resources 6,528,300 8,571,098 -2,042,798 
SEN top-ups 14,722,146 15,012,711 -290,565 
High Needs contingency 400,000 536,028 -136,028 
Independent Special Schools 5,120,000 5,920,522 -800,522 
Home Tuition 422,730 422,730 -0 
Support for SEN 2,069,253 1,794,732 274,521
Special School Transport 58,200 58,200 0

Non-delegated school costs Total 35,011,762 37,931,236 -2,919,474 

Total Costs 187,792,363 190,674,781 -2,882,418 

Funding
Dedicated School Grant -189,015,997 -188,896,163 -119,834 
Total before Movement in DSG Reserve -1,223,634 1,778,618 -3,002,252 
Contribution to/-from DSG Reserve 2,683,134 -319,118 3,002,252

Grand Total 1,459,500 1,459,500 -0 

2021-22 
Budget                    

2021-22      
Forecast                    

2021-22 
Variation 

Page 28



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th NOVEMBER 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND EDUCATION

SCHOOLS REVENUE FUNDING 2022-23 NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Forum with feedback from the consultation 
with schools on the 2022-23 Funding Formula and to consider requests to 
disapply specific the NFF in specific circumstances. The outcome of the 
consultation will inform the allocation of funding to schools which will then be 
considered in the budget recommendations presented to the February 2022 
meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee. 

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 As reported to Schools Forum at the September 2021 meeting, the Department for 
Education (DFE) announced in July 2021 that the 2022-23 provisional schools 
block allocation for Wirral will be £236,196,937.

2.2   The provisional school block allocation includes the following changes:

 The core factors in the NFF (such as basic per-pupil funding, and funding for 
additional needs such as deprivation) will increase by 3%.

 The funding floor will ensure that every school is allocated at least 2% more 
pupil-led funding per pupil compared to its 2021-22 NFF allocation.

 The minimum per pupil funding levels will increase by 2%, compared to 
2021-22. This will mean that, next year, every primary school will receive at 
least £4,265 per pupil, and every secondary school at least £5,525.

2.3 For 2022-23, Local authorities have the freedom to set the minimum funding 
guarantee (MFG) in local formulae between +0.5% and +2% per pupil and a 
consultation exercise has been undertaken with schools to obtain their views on 
the MFG level for 2022-23.

3.0 2022-23 FUNDING FORMULA CONSULTATION

3.1 The consultation took place between 1st October 2021 and 25th October 2021 and 
sought views on the following:

Level of MFG for 2022-23 for three options as follows:

 + 0.50% - this would give all schools at least the minimum 0.5% increase in 
per pupil funding and allow those due to gain most from the formula (i.e. 
those deemed underfunded) to gain closer to their full allocation. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 13



 + 1.25% - this would offer a greater minimum increase in per pupil funding but 
may result in some schools due to gain most having their gain capped. 

 + 2.00% - this would increase the minimum per pupil funding increase further, 
but similarly may increase the cap on some gaining schools as a result.

3.3 In addition, views will be sought on the usage of any funding that may be left 
following the allocation of the confirmed 2022-23 schools block allocation. For 
2021-22, such funding was allocated to a Growth Fund and Falling Rolls Fund.

3.4 To support the consultation processes, the information made available to schools 
included a financial model to identify the indicative impact of the MFG options on 
each school. 

4.0 SUMMARY OF RESPONSES

4.1 The responses to the consultation are contained in the attachment and these can 
be summarised as follows:

Q1 - What level of Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) would you like to be 
included in the funding formula from April 2022? There were 18 responses to this 
question with the 1.25% option being favoured albeit with a small majority.

Q2 – Why have you selected this option? There were 17 responses and the key 
feedback on the reasons for selecting this option were around fairness and 
maximising distribution of funds across schools.

Q3 – Do you have any comments on how any spare capacity within the funding 
available should be allocated. For example, establish a Growth Fund and/or 
Falling Rolls Fund? There were 13 responses to this question and these identified 
a clear preference for a falling rolls and growth fund with an emphasis on falling 
rolls.

5.0 APPLICATION OF THE CONSULTATION OUTCOME

5.1 The MFG rate of 1.25% will be applied to the formula for 2022-23 as per the 
outcome of the consultation with schools.   

5.2 A falling rolls/growth fund will established from the headroom in the schools block 
final allocation after applying the MFG rate of 1.25%. The emphasis on falling rolls 
will be a prime consideration in the basis for the distribution of the fund.

6.0 DISAPPLICATION REQUESTS

6.1 In certain circumstances, Local Authorities can request not to apply a specific 
aspect of the National Funding Formula.  

6.2 As per paragraph 63 of the Schools revenue funding 2022-23 Operational guide, 
Wirral Council propose the submission of a disapplication request for Birkenhead 

Page 30



High School Academy on the basis that the relevant all-through minimum per-
pupil funding levels (MPPL) value for that school is skewed significantly by 
unusual year group sizes. The MPPL allocated to all-through schools in the NFF 
is a composite of the primary and secondary schools’ rate. Given that the primary 
school rate is lower than the secondary school rate, applying the composite rate 
financially disadvantages all-through schools where the number of secondary age 
pupils is significantly higher than primary age pupils. The submission of the 
request and subsequent approval by DfE would result in the application of the 
MPPL rate relevant to each phase.

6.3 The financial impact of this request has been modelled in the 2022-23 school 
indicative funding template and this has shown to have no adverse effect on any 
other school i.e. no school had their MFG% capped when rates of +0.5%, +1.25% 
and +2.00% were applied. It should be noted, however, that the 2022-23 funding 
model is indicative at this time.

6.4 The disapplication process requires the Local Authority to formally consult with 
Schools Forum and ask for their support on all disapplication requests submitted 
to the DfE, voting details and minutes of the relevant Schools Forum meetings are 
referenced on the disapplication requests forms.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That the Forum notes the report.

7.2 Schools Forum’s views are sought on the proposal to include +1.25% Minimum 
Funding Guarantee within Wirral’s funding formula in 2022-23.

 
7.3 Schools Forum’s views are sought on the proposal to a falling rolls/growth fund 

form any spare capacity within the 2022-23 school allocation with the emphasis 
on falling rolls being considered in its basis for distribution.

7.4 The mainstream primary and secondary school members agree to the submission 
of the disapplication request to DfE for Birkenhead High School Academy.

Simone White
Director of Children, Families and Education  

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Schools Funding Survey

SURVEY RESPONSE REPORT
01 October 2021 - 25 October 2021

PROJECT NAME:
Schools Funding Consultation

Page 33



SURVEY QUESTIONS

Schools Funding Survey : Survey Report for 01 October 2021 to 25 October 2021

Page 1 of 5 Page 34



Q1  What level of Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) would you like to be included in the

funding formula from April 2022?

6 (33.3%)

6 (33.3%)

7 (38.9%)

7 (38.9%)

5 (27.8%)

5 (27.8%)

+0.50% +1.25% +2.00%

Question options

Optional question (18 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Schools Funding Survey : Survey Report for 01 October 2021 to 25 October 2021

Page 2 of 5 Page 35



Anonymous
10/01/2021 09:34 AM

It is fair and reasonable for all schools

Anonymous
10/01/2021 10:40 AM

It offers the greatest distribution of funds

Anonymous
10/01/2021 02:20 PM

It is the best option for our school financially but also for all the

schools that it makes a difference to.

Anonymous
10/03/2021 06:44 PM

Absolutely essential that we ensure that funding follows the child in

our education system. It si not morally right that we are supporting

schools with falling numbers and moving money away from the

child.

Anonymous
10/10/2021 10:39 AM

If we go for 2% and we have more deprivation picked up in census,

thus more income, we will then get capped.

Anonymous
10/11/2021 03:38 PM

Reducing to 0.5% may adversely impact more schools while

increasing to 2% means taking more funding than necessary from

schools due to gain most. Maintaining the middle ground at 1.25%

offers a more balanced & fairer approach.

Anonymous
10/12/2021 09:12 PM

Balance

Anonymous
10/13/2021 02:16 PM

this would offer a greater minimum increase in per pupil funding

and would result in a smaller number of schools due to gain most

having their gain capped, compared with +2.00%

Anonymous
10/14/2021 01:51 PM

It appears the fairest option in the best interest of everyone.

Anonymous
10/18/2021 10:24 AM

It distributes the greatest funds directly into schools.

Q2  Why have you selected this option?

Schools Funding Survey : Survey Report for 01 October 2021 to 25 October 2021

Page 3 of 5 Page 36



Anonymous
10/20/2021 04:31 PM

Provides all schools with an increase

Anonymous
10/21/2021 11:38 PM

For the greater common good of all schools, to create the best

outcome for all schools as a whole.

Anonymous
10/22/2021 07:49 AM

Fairest solution for all schools

Anonymous
10/22/2021 08:23 AM

This is the fairest solution for all schools

Anonymous
10/22/2021 10:22 AM

Governor decision.

Anonymous
10/22/2021 10:27 AM

Schools would receive a greater min increase in pupil funding and

those schools identified will receive some additional / extra funding.

It may mean that there will be some capacity to provide additional

monetary support in other areas.

Anonymous
10/22/2021 11:13 AM

Gives all schools a minimum increase without capping other

schools. As a secondary school with large annual pay increases,

our funding needs to be at the required level with no capping.

Anonymous
10/01/2021 09:34 AM

Falling rolls fund

Anonymous
10/01/2021 10:40 AM

Growth / Falling roll budget as discussed at forum

Anonymous
10/01/2021 02:20 PM

Falling rolls fund will surely alleviate the issues leading to the pupil

place strategy

Optional question (17 response(s), 1 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Q3  Do you have any comments on how any spare capacity within the funding available

should be allocated. For example, establish a Growth Fund and/or Falling Rolls Fund.

Schools Funding Survey : Survey Report for 01 October 2021 to 25 October 2021

Page 4 of 5 Page 37



Anonymous
10/03/2021 06:44 PM

We should have a growth fund to support schools and innovation.

Anonymous
10/10/2021 10:39 AM

SEN in particular SEMH is one of the biggest issues Headteachers

are facing - could it be spent there? If not, to establish a Growth

Fund

Anonymous
10/11/2021 03:38 PM

A falling rolls fund would be of great benefit to schools facing

significant budget reduction due to falling numbers.

Anonymous
10/12/2021 09:12 PM

High needs and supporting students at risk or in crisis

Anonymous
10/13/2021 02:16 PM

I would prefer to see any spare capacity within the funding

available, used to establish a falling rolls fund, as the falling birth

rate makes this a significant funding challenge for some Wirral

schools

Anonymous
10/18/2021 10:24 AM

Maintaining a small Growth/ Falling rolls fund would support school

smost in need of additional funding to manage shigting numbers.

Anonymous
10/20/2021 04:31 PM

No comment

Anonymous
10/21/2021 11:38 PM

Falling Rolls Fund

Anonymous
10/22/2021 10:27 AM

Happy for any additional funding to be used to support schools

with falling pupil numbers.

Anonymous
10/22/2021 11:13 AM

Spare Capacity should go to those with falling rolls or a spike in

growth.

Optional question (13 response(s), 5 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Schools Funding Survey : Survey Report for 01 October 2021 to 25 October 2021

Page 5 of 5 Page 38



WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM   30th November 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND EDUCATION

Forum Membership Review
_____________________________________________________________________

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report describes the current representation of the Forum and membership 
changes.

1.2 Current Representation

The table below details the current makeup of the Wirral Schools’ Forum 
representation and when the terms of office are due to expire. 

2018-
2022

2019-
2023

2020-
2024

2021-
2025 Total

Total 
Membership       

5 Primary Headteachers 1  1 3 5
4 Primary Governors 1 1 1 1 4
1 Secondary Headteachers   1  1
1 Special Headteacher 1    1
1 Special Governors 1    1
1 Nursery Representative    1 1

13 Total Schools Membership      
9 Academy Representative 1 2  4 7
9 Total Academy Membership      
1 Non-teacher representative    1 1
1 Teacher representative  1   1
1 Catholic Diocese    1 1
1 Church of England Diocese    1 1
1 16-19 representative     0
3 PVI Early Years Providers  2  1 3

8
Total Non-Schools 
Membership      

30 Total Membership 5 6 3 13 27

1.3 There are currently 2 Academy vacancies, with one temporarily being filled by Lisa 
Ayling, until volunteers come forward.  Another member, Jon Bush, confirmed a 
further term of office after there were no nominations for the vacant positions in June.  
A new request will be sent out to fill the vacancies.

1.4 There is currently a vacancy for the 16-19 representative, which is currently being 
considered.

Page 39

Agenda Item 14



1.5 New Members 
There have been two new members since the September report, as follows:-

Michael Forber, Executive Headteacher of Somerville Federation as the 
Nursery Representative, replacing Cathy Hughes.
Jessica Trigg, new PVI early Years representative to fill the recent vacancy.

Appendix 1 identifies all current members and their role on School’s Forum.

1.5 Membership Changes
Regulations governing the forum requires school/academy membership to take 
account of pupil weighting.  Although one primary school, Brackenwood Junior, 
converted to Academy on 1st January 2021 this does not affect the current 
school/academy split.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Forum notes the report.

Simone White
Director of Children, Families and Education

Current  
Pupil no's     

Jan 21 Census  Expected

9 Primary 21717 45.2% 9
1 Secondary 3643 7.6% 1
9 Academy 22635 47.2% 9

19.0  47995  100.0% 19

Page 40



Group Name Category of Membership
SCHOOL 

/establishment Term of Office

Schools Andy Ramsden
Primary Headteacher 
(Birkenhead S) Oxton St Saviours Sep-20 Aug-24

Schools Sue Ralph
Primary Headteacher 
(Birkenhead N) St Michael & All Angels Sep-21 Aug-25

Schools John McDonald
Primary Headteacher 
(Wallasey) St Albans Primary Sep-21 Sep-25

Schools Emma Johnson
Primary Headteacher 
(Deeside) Greasby Junior Sep-21 Aug-25

Schools Liz Davidson
Primary Headteacher 
(Beb/Brom) Brookhurst Jul-18 Jun-22

Schools Charlotte Scott Primary Governor St Georges Primary Aug-21 Jul-25
Schools Roy Wood Primary Governor Hillside Primary Oct-18 Sep-22

Schools Julie Merry Primary Governor
Overchurch 
Infants/Cathcart Jan-21 Dec-24

Schools Tony Norbury Primary Governor Prenton Primary Sep-19 Aug-23
Schools Simon Goodwin Secondary Headteacher South Wirral High Sep-20 Aug-24
Schools Margaret Morris Special Headteacher Elleray Park Sep-18 Aug-22
Schools John Weise Special Governor Hayfield Primary Dec-18 Nov-22
Schools Michael Forber Nursery Representative Somerville Federation Oct-21 Sep-25
Academy Moira Loftus Academy Rep Townfield Primary Jun-21 May-25
Academy Adrian Whiteley Academy Rep (Chair) St Anselms Aug-19 Jul-23

Academy Helen Johnson Academy Rep
The Birkenhead Park 
School Sep-21 Aug-25

Academy Vacancy Academy Rep    
Academy Mark Bellamy Academy Rep Hilbre High School Sep-21 Aug-25

Academy Andy Waller Academy Rep
West Kirby Grammar 
School May-18 Apr-22

Academy Jon Bush Academy Rep Oldershaw Academy Dec-21 Nov-25

Academy Geraldine Fraser Academy Rep
Prenton High School for 
Girls Oct-19 Sep-23

Academy
Lisa Ayling 
(Temp) Academy Rep

Prenton High School for 
Girls Nov-19  

Non-
Schools Gill Harris

Non-teacher 
representative Wirral Unison May-21 Apr-25

Non-
Schools Anne Rycroft Teacher representative NASUWT Aug-19 Jul-23
Non-
Schools Joanne Proctor Catholic Diocese Christ the King Sep-21 Aug-25
Non-
Schools Brian McGregor

Church of England 
Diocese Woochurch CE Primary Sep-21 Aug-25

Non-
Schools Vacancy 16-19 Provider    
Non-
Schools Nicky Prance PVI Early Years Providers Barnston Buddies Jan-21 Dec-23
Non-
Schools Simon Davies PVI Early Years Providers Penguins Nurseries Jan-21 Dec-23
Non-
Schools Jessica Trigg PVI Early Years Providers The Mulberry Tree Oct-21 Sep-25

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 30th November 2021     WORK PLAN 

Meeting 
Date

18th January 2022 March 2022 
Provisional 
meeting

14th June 2022 September 2022 November 2022

Virtual / 
Physical

Elect chair & vice chair
Budget Budget Monitoring 21-22 Q3

Schools Budget 22-23
De-delegation of budgets 
School Balances update
Growth & Falling Rolls Fund 

 Provisional outturn 2021-22 
Schools Budget 2022-23 
School Balances update

Budget monitoring 21-22 Q2 
School Balances Update  

Budget Monitoring 21-22 
Update 

Consultation 2023-24 School Funding 
Arrangements if new info out      

2022-23 National Funding 
Formula for Schools, High 
Needs and Early Years 

National Funding Formula 
Update for 2022-23   

DfE Regs & 
guidelines

Schools Forum Membership
If updated
 DfE Operational Guide 
 School Finance Regs 
 Scheme for Financing 

Schools

 Schools Forum Membership
If updated
 DfE Operational Guide 
 School Finance Regs 
 Scheme for Financing 

Schools

Schools Forum Membership 
If updated

 DfE Operational Guide 
 School Finance Regs
 Scheme for Financing 

Schools 

Schools Forum Membership 
If updated
 DfE Operational Guide 
 School Finance Regs 
Scheme for Financing Schools

Working 
Groups

High Needs   
Early Years   

High Needs   
Early Years 

School Formula
High Needs   
Early Years  

Other Wirral Traded Services 
Update
Sensory Support Service 
Update  
Energy update Wirral 

LACES /LAC PP Update    

Home Tuition Update
School Admissions

Special School Places 

De-delegated services  
 Contingency, Spcl Staff 

Costs, Insurance
  Library Service 
 School Improvement 
 Behaviour Support  
Alternative Provision 
Edsential Update   

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Wirral Schools' Forum Minutes 280921
	6 Edsential Update
	7 Library Service Update
	8 Contingency, Special Staff COsts and Insurance
	9 Early Years Working Group Update
	11 School Improvement and Behaviour Support
	12 Budget Monitoring Update  2021-22
	13 National Funding Formula update and Consultation 2022-23
	Schools funding survey results

	14 Schools Forum Membership update
	15 Workplan

